EASTERN OREGON LIVESTOCK SHOW

UNION, OREGON



The Oldest Show in the Northwest

UNION, OREGON

"LET'S STIRRUP SOME FUN!"

June 2-9, 2024 Union, Oregon

Official Classification List

Sponsored by: Eastern Oregon Livestock Show, Inc.





EOLS Entry Instructions

Entries are due by May 15th at 5:00 pm. Entries must be made by entering online through our Union County Extension Website at: https://extension.oregonstate.edu/4h/union/eastern-oregon-livestock-show.

All 4-H entries can be made by members or club leaders through the ShoWorks website. **A \$15 Exhibitor fee per 4-H contestant is due during online registration.**

Questions: (541) 963-1010 Union County Extension Office Kimi Starner 4-H Education Program Assistant Karie Kelley 4-H Program Coordinator (503)789-4111 – Karie Kelley cell

All exhibitors, parents and leaders are responsible for knowing show policies and abiding by the rules in your division. <u>Changes are noted in red.</u>

Required at registration:

(Forms must be uploaded during registration)

- **Oregon 4-H Animal Science Exhibitor Agreement** is required for all 4-H exhibitors. *Please email these to the extension office at unionco4h@gmail.com*.
- All forms are available on the Union County Extension Website https://extension.oregonstate.edu/4h/union/eastern-oregon-livestock-show

Required at weigh in:

- Market Animal Health Records are required for 4-H & FFA market animals. Must be filled out correctly.
- Country of Original Origin (COOL) required for all 4-H & FFA market animals
- **Transfer of ownership slip** (E-slip) required for all 4-H & FFA market steers. Original must be turned in at weigh in.

Note:

- ❖ Goats will show first in even years, sheep first in odd
- Homegrown verification form required by species possession date.
- **❖** LATE ARRIVALS:

If you have an emergency regarding late arrivals for market animal weigh in, individuals must call the 4-H Superintendent to verify. Telephone number: 541-562-5631, 4-H office at EOLS grounds.

Table of contents

4-H Departments	3
4-H Schedule	4
4-H Club Rules	7
Contests for all Members	11
Presentations, Livestock Judging Contest & Horse Judging Contest	
Herdsmanship Guidelines	12
Horse	14
Livestock	17
Market Classes	17
Home Grown	18
Beef Cattle	19
Sheep	20
Dairy Cattle	21
Dairy Goats	22
Meat Goats	23
Special Awards	24
Point System	25
4-H & FFA Auction Rules	26
Health Requirements	32

4-H Departments

Superintendent	Karie Kelley, 4-H Program Coordinator
4-H Staff	Kimi Starner 4-H Education Program Asst.
Beef	Charlie & Debi Warnock
Goat	Kim Hudson
Swine	Devin & Debbie Cornford
Sheep	Lory Graham & Earl Graham
Horse	TJ Jones
Small Animal	Ken Patterson
Auction Chairmen	Scott & Trista Loree
Auction Treasurer	Elaine LaRochelle
Weigh Masters	Lenard Porfily, Pat Bruce, Earl Graham
EOLS President	Cassie Miller-Petersen
1 st Vice President	Chris Bakker
2 nd Vice President	Ace Clark
3 rd Vice President	Scott Loree
Secretary/Treasurer	JoAnn Hefner

Schedule

Sunday ~ June 2

1:00 pm 4-H Office open/Horse Check in

2:00 pm EOLS Queen Try-outs (no one allowed on arena during this time)

4:00 pm Orientation (Horse leaders, members, parents, & judge)

5:00 pm 4-H & FFA Horse Showmanship

Adult Horse Showmanship Fundraiser (following showmanship)

7:00 pm 4-H Office closed

Monday ~ June 3

7:00 am Orientation (Horse members, leaders, parents & judge)

8:00 am 4-H & FFA Western Classes

2:00 pm 4-H & FFA Horse Judging Contest 3:30 pm 4-H Presentations – (EOLS Clubhouse)

3:30 pm 4-H Small Animal check in – (Becker Sale Pavilion)

4:00 pm 4-H Small Animal Show

6:30 pm 4-H Office closed

Tuesday ~ June 4

7:00 am 4-H Office opens

7:00 am Orientation (Horse members, leaders, parents & judge)

8:00 am 4-H & FFA English Classes

11:00 am Gaming (follows English Classes)3:00 pm 4-H Horse Show Awards Presentation

5:00 pm 4-H Office closed 7:00 pm Queen's Coronation

Wednesday ~ June 5

12:00 pm 4-H Office opens 12:00-2:00 pm Dairy Goat Check-In

2:00-7:00 pm 4-H & FFA Market Animal weigh-in 2:00 pm 4-H Presentations (EOLS Clubhouse)

3:00 pm FFA & 4-H Dairy Goat Showmanship & Breeding - Becker Barn (FFA shows

1st followed immediately by 4-H)

7:00 pm All animals in place

4-H Office closed/FFA Office Closed

Thursday ~ June 6

6:00 am	Cowboy Breakfast	
7:30 am	4-H All Livestock Orientation (Parents, Leaders & Members)	
8:00 am	4-H & FFA Dairy Cow Showmanship & Conformation (FFA Beef Arena)	
	4-H Beef Conformation (market followed by breeding)	
	FFA Beef Conformation Classes (market followed by breeding)	
	(Time is estimate – FFA follows 4-H Beef in FFA Beef Arena)	
8:15 am	4-H Office opens	
8:30 am	4-H Meeting with Judges at Species Show Rings	
8:00 am	FFA Market Hog Classes	
9:00 am	4-H Swine Conformation Classes	
9:00 am	4-H Meat Goat Conformation Classes followed by 4-H Sheep	
	Conformation Classes (market followed by breeding) (goats 1st even	
	year/sheep odd year)	
9:00 am	Deadline to sign up for Special Awards and turn in 4-H Record books	
	(4-H Office)	
11:00 am	4-H Special Award Interviews begin – check in at 4-H Office	
11:00 am	FFA Sheep (Market then Breeding)	
1:30 pm	FFA Meat Goats (Market then Breeding) (FFA Swine Ring)	
3:30 pm	4-H & FFA Livestock Judging Contest - Becker Barn	
3:30 pm	4-H Office closed	
5:30 pm	Champion Drive - 4-H/FFA Overall - Becker Sale Barn	
7:00 pm	Ed Miller Extreme Bulls	
	Adult Dance, Clubhouse (after conclusion of Bull Riding)	

Friday ~ June 7

6:00 am	Cowboy Breakfast
7:30 am	FFA Meeting of Advisors and Judges in FFA office
7:30 am	4-H All Livestock Orientation (Parents, Leaders & Members)
8:00 am	4-H Office opens
8:00 am	FFA Jody Schubert Award Interviews
8:30 am	4-H Meeting with Judges at Species Ring
8:30 am	FFA Swine Showmanship (Advanced followed by Greenhand)
8:30 am	4-H Beef Showmanship (Sr., Int., Jr., Int. Novice, Jr. Novice)
	FFA Beef Showmanship (beef ring) Advanced then Greenhand (Following
	4-H Show)
	FFA Goat Showmanship will follow FFA Beef
9:00 am	4-H Swine Showmanship (Earl Marshall Barn) (Sr., Int., Jr., Int. Novice, Jr.
	Novice)
9:00 am	4-H Meat Goat Showmanship (Becker Sale Barn) (Sr., Int., Jr., Int. Novice,
	Jr. Novice)
	4-H Sheep Showmanship (following Goats) (Sr., Int., Jr., Int. Novice, Jr.
	Novice)
9:00 am	Bob Cornford Award nominations due from 4-H Superintendents

Friday Cont.

10:30 am	FFA Breeding Sheep
11:00 am	FFA Sheep Showmanship
1:00 pm	Assemble for Parade

2:00 pm Parade

2:00 pm 4-H Office closed

3:30 pm Kids Corral – (4-H Knott Barn) 4:00 pm PRCA Rodeo & Racing Post Time

5:00 pm FFA Awards Presentation

6:00 pm 4-H Awards Presentation (Becker Sale Barn)

6:00 pm All 4-H breeding stock released

Adult Dance, Clubhouse (after rodeo)

Saturday ~ June 8

6:00 am	Cowboy Breakfast
8:00 am	4-H & FFA Auction Sale
1:30 pm	Kids Corral – (4-H Knott Barn)
2:00 pm	PRCA Rodeo
2:00 pm	Racing Post Time

Adult Dance, Clubhouse (after rodeo)

Sunday ~ June 9

1:30 pm PRCA Rodeo & Racing Post Time

4-H Club Rules

All 4-H classes and contests are open to currently enrolled Oregon 4-H

<u>Cloverbud</u> – For members 5-8 years old (only show small animals)

Junior - For members 9 - 11 years old

Intermediate - For members 12 - 14 years old

Senior - For members 15 - 19 years old

(Age as of Sept 1 of previous year, 19-year-olds must still be in high school)

- 1. All exhibitor entries must be done through ShoWorks online. *Paper entries will not be accepted*.
- 2. **4-H Records Deadline**. 4-H records are required for special contests and must be submitted to the 4-H office on the Eastern Oregon Livestock Show grounds by 9:00 am Thursday. No exceptions. **Record books need not be submitted at the show unless competing for special awards or entering the Record Book Contest (Union County members only).**
- 3. All animals must be in place by 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday and will be weighed upon arrival. See Rule 2 underweight requirements. (All animals other than market are released from the grounds on Friday at 6 p.m. and should be removed).
- 4. Exhibitors of 4-H market animals must have owned and cared for their animals at least 60 days prior to the show (except steers which are 120 days), breeding animals is 90 days. Exhibitors must verify possession through ShoWorks by species possession dates. *If an animal is leased, a lease agreement must be turned into the Union Co. Ext. Office by April 1.*
- 5. Market Lambs must be slick shorn (wool not to exceed 3/8") across the scale, or animals will not be allowed to be shown or sold at show. Animals must be dry and with no blankets when crossing the scales. Hogs should have all excess mud removed.
- 6. Registered animals must be registered in the name of the exhibitor. Registration in a partnership or family name is acceptable providing that the 4-H member's animals have been identified to the club leader at the beginning of the project.
- 7. 4-H members who share an animal in a 4-H project must:
 - · Have approval designated in ShoWorks from 4-H staff.
 - Decide who will enter and show it in conformation classes. Each member may show the shared animal in showmanship, if they can be in different classes.
- 8. All fitting, training, care and showing must be done by the exhibitor (exception: junior and novice members may receive minimal assistance from older 4-H members only, not adults). Violations: show committee and 4-H Program Coordinator will give one warning; second violation: contestant will be disqualified from show and auction. Animals and stalls must be presentable at all times. All animals must be clean when exhibited, shown, and sold.
- 9. Market animals or feeders may be purebred, crossbred or grade. Breeding females may be purebred or grade but must conform to breed types.
- 10. All market animals are to be judged by weight rather than by breed.

- 11. All 4-H members are allowed to weigh in and sell one market animal.
- 12. An exhibitor may take only **one** entry in each breeding class.
- 13. Fleeces exhibited must have been shorn in the current year. They will be displayed in the Connie Braseth Building. They should be contained in a clear garbage bag with a 4-H wool tag attached.
- 14. Because of space limitation in barns each sheep and goat exhibitor will be limited to **five** sheep and/or goats. This includes market animals. We also do not have swine breeding classes.
- 15. No animal shall be exhibited in more than one class, except classes for breeding groups, horse classifications and market pens. An animal may not be shown as a market animal and breeding animal.
- 16. No animal shall receive an award higher than the judge determines.
- 17. All exhibitors must enter and take part in a showmanship contest in one of their respective divisions, and must show their own animals. Horse club members should participate in an equitation class.
- 18. Novice livestock showmanship classes are for 4-H members in their first year of 4-H.
- 19. Class order: senior, intermediate, junior, Int/Sr novice, Jr novice
- 14. The judging schedule as outlined will be strictly adhered to. However, exhibitors with class conflicts should be in communication with superintendents. All efforts will be made to accommodate youth showing in multiple projects.
- 15. Stalls: stalls are cleaned during our clean up days but may be used by others before the show. We appreciate you cleaning your stall per your preferred biosecurity needs when you arrive. Each exhibitor must clean out the manure in his/her stall and place it in the designated area by release times: Breeding stock is Friday at 6:00 p.m., Market stock is Saturday at 1:30 p.m. In compliance with Union City ordinance, it will be necessary to separate wires and paper from manure. Special containers will be provided for this purpose.
- 16. The Danish point system will be used. Points will be totaled for all showmanship classes.
- 17. Points will be awarded to first, second, and third place, according to the various classes.
- 18. Club members must furnish their own grain and hay. No straw allowed. Chips will be provided.
- 19. Safety rules:
 - a. No riding of horses inside the horse and livestock areas.
 - b. No saddled horses in stalls.
 - c. Pitchforks, rakes and other items of equipment must have the tines on the ground when not in use and the handles securely fastened.
 - d. No cars, trucks, or other motor vehicles will be allowed within the livestock and horse areas between 8 am 5 pm.
 - e. An unmanageable animal may be requested to leave the show. Exhibitors of questionable beef animals will be required to lead their animals a prescribed distance. Any control decisions will be made by the division superintendent, an EOLS officer and respective

- 4-H or FFA director. Any excused animal is disqualified from the show.
- f. Nose tongs will not be allowed.
- 27. Health/Ethics Policy The 4-H Program, Eastern Oregon Livestock Show and Sale supports the humane treatment of all animals. We are committed to:
 - a. Upholding the welfare of animals as a primary consideration in all activities.
 - b. Requiring that animals be treated with kindness, respect, and compassion.
 - c. Ensuring that owners, trainers, and exhibitors use responsible care in handling, transportation and exhibiting their animals.
 - d. Providing for the continuous wellbeing of animals through proper feeding, disease prevention, sanitation, and attention to their safety.
 - e. Supporting scientific research to improve the health, safety, and wellbeing of livestock.
 - f. The state 4-H Oregon animal science exhibitor agreement covers all animal projects and must be signed by exhibitors.
- 28. Club members may discuss placings with official judges, but undue criticism and unsportsmanlike conduct will not be allowed.
- 29. Club members must allow their animals to be used in livestock and horse judging contests if needed.
- 30. Any adult who wishes to file a complaint may do so in writing to the EOLS Board of Directors and accompany the complaint with \$50 cash fee (non- refundable). See "Appeal Process" in auction rules.
- 31. Each member paying the exhibitor fee & participating at the Eastern Oregon Livestock Show will receive an exhibitor rodeo pass. Exhibitor passes may not be used by volunteers. A special adult pass will be given to 4-H leaders and other adults who assist at the show.
- 32. A Change of Ownership brand inspection slip (E-slip) must accompany all market steers at weigh in.
- 33. A "COOL" form and market health form is required for all market animals and will be collected at weigh in.
- 34. Animals exhibiting in "Other Breeds" class: If five (5) or more animals of an unlisted breed are shown, a separate class will be established with champion ribbons awarded. "Other Breeds" class will be judged independently based on their respective breed merits. Champion ribbons will be awarded if merited.
- 35. Sale & Show Policies for club animal or donation animal:
 - a. Must have approval of 4-H Program Coordinator in charge of show
 - b. A club will only be allowed to sell one animal.
 - c. A club will not sell an animal in two consecutive years.
 - d. A club animal will be shown in appropriate conformation class by a club member to determine grade and place.

- e. A club animal can be used in a showmanship class by a member if:
 - i. That member has worked with and helped train animal sufficiently to have control.
 - ii. Scheduling conflict exists that can't be easily resolved.
 - iii. Club animal can't be used in place of the members' own animal. Note: club animal can only be shown in one showmanship class.
 - iv. Different members can show club animal for conformation/ showmanship classes.
- VI. Any club member that can control the animal can sell it through sale ring.
- VII. Must own animal at least 120 days for beef and 60 days for lambs, hogs & goats.
- VIII. Animal must be entered by deadline in showmanship & conformation.
- IX. Donated through club or club member.
- X. Identify what proceeds are going toward.
- XI. Sale instruction written on 3X5 card and handed to auctioneer.
- XII. Clubs must have submitted an Intent to Conduct a Fundraiser Form & received approval PRIOR to entry deadline.
- XIII. Proceeds from the animal must be split 50/50 between the club and the 4-H EOLS Building Improvement Fund.
 - 36. If an animal crosses the scale at EOLS and weighs in, it will be tagged and will be considered in-eligible for future shows.

Contests for all Members

Presentations

Separate classes for both individual and team presentations will be available. Exhibitor will be assigned a time slot and sent the schedule. Judging criteria are outlined on the Oregon 4-H Presentation Evaluation sheets.

- · Demonstrations and Illustrated Talks (211-001)
- · Public Speaking (211-002)
- · Impromptu Speaking (211-003)

All are available at the county Extension office and on the State 4-H website at: https://extension.oregonstate.edu/4h/communication-exhibit-information.

Note: Fill in the blank () with age level number from above.
211 600 01() Demonstration, Individuals
211 600 02() Demonstration, Team
211 601 01() Illustrated Talk, Individuals
211 601 02() Illustrated Talk, Team
211 602 01() Public Speaking, Individuals
211 603 01() Impromptu Speaking, Individuals

1 - Junior 2 - Intermediate 3 - Senior

211 900 001	Cloverbud, 1 st year – Suggested topic: Recite the 4-H Motto then speak for up
to one minute on what the motto means to them.	

- 211 900 002 **Cloverbud, 2nd year** Suggested topic: Recite the 4-H Pledge then speak for up to one minute on what the four H's mean to them.
- 211 900 003 **Cloverbud, 3**rd **year** Suggested topic: Recite the 4-H Creed then speak for up to one minute on what 4-H means to them.

Cloverbuds may choose their own presentation topic or use the suggested one.

Livestock Judging Contest

Contestants will be required to place classes of swine, sheep, beef, goat and one class of oral reasons. Each class will include four animals or items. **Pre-registration is required.**

700 900 000	Livestock Judging, Cloverbud
700 900 001	Livestock Judging, Junior
700 900 002	Livestock Judging, Intermediate
700 900 003	Livestock Judging, Senior

Horse Judging Contest

Contestants will be required to place classes of horses (breed and classes to be determined later).

751 900 000 Horse Judging, Cloverbud 751 900 001 Horse Judging, Junior 751 900 002 Horse Judging, Intermediate 751 900 003 Horse Judging, Senior

Union County 4-H Record Book Contest

Open to ALL Union County 4-H Members.

Guidelines for the contest are at:

https://extension.oregonstate.edu/4h/union/record-books

- 1. Only open to Union County 4-H members
- 2. Open to all project areas
- 3. Will be judged on neatness, completeness & compliance with Union County
- 4. Must be up to date as of May 31.
- 5. Must pre-register and pay exhibitor fee
- 5. Must be turned in by 9 am at the EOLS 4-H Office, Thursday of the show.
- 6. Ribbons will be presented Friday at the 4-H Awards program.

The basis for scoring will be:

Neatness30 pointsCompleteness30 pointsCompliance with guidelines30 pointsParticipation10 pointsTotal Possible Points100 points

Herdsmanship

Beef (including Dairy Cattle), Sheep, Swine, Goats and Horse 4-H HERDSMANSHIP Contest is the way members demonstrate their knowledge of <u>safety procedures</u> and display their animals to the public and other 4-H members. HERDSMANSHIP is designed to provide experience in developing courtesy, cooperation, neatness and the proper care of animals. Parents are encouraged to give guidance; however, members <u>MUST</u> do their <u>OWN</u> work. Stall decorations are optional. Herdsmanship will be judged periodically each day of the show. The Herdsmanship judge will post daily placings on stalls.

Basis for Scoring

CLUB MEMBERS (1-40 points). (Members to be observed when present, continued attendance not required).

- · Appearance (Clean, neat, suitably dressed)
- · Cooperation (between members, leaders, and other clubs) Courtesy, friendliness, positive attitude
- · Work done by club members
- Positive attitude exhibited
- · Stall cards completed and visible from front of stalls
- *Footwear—hard soled shoes at all times
- * Helmets, Boots, and bridles while on horse
- *Absolutely no riding of horses inside the horse and livestock areas

ANIMALS (1-20 points).

- · Securely tied or penned
- · Clean and comfortable
- · Regularly fed, watered and cared for

BARN AREA (1-30 points).

- Clean and orderly
- · Alleys, stalls and pens cleaned regularly
- · Stalls well bedded
- · Cleaning equipment should be stored in a safe manner
- · Groups are to provide own cleaning equipment
- · Stored hay to be kept tied
- · Tack and grooming equipment to be stored securely
- · Tack and feed area neat and orderly
- Decorations appropriate
- *No saddled horses in stalls
- *Hay bags secure at shoulder height or above
- *Buckets to be snapped or tied to wall

*Items apply to horse only

Livestock will be divided by Beef (including dairy cattle), Sheep, Swine, and Goats, with each species receiving an award.

Horse will be divided into two groups. They will be judged as follows: 1) Individuals and small clubs up to 6 members, 2) clubs with 7 or more members.

Each group with the highest points will receive an award. In case of a tie, it will be left to the judge's discretion.

Horse

Animal(s) must be in possession and care of the member by **April 1.** An animal obtained after this date is subject to review by the Show Committee (4-H Program Coordinator, Chairman and Cochairman) as to eligibility. If a 4-H member's horse is unable to be shown, the member may show a different horse with approval of the 4-H Show Committee. The member may receive a ribbon in the entered classes but is **not eligible** for **Champion or Reserve Champion**. Please go to your Show Committee to discuss any special circumstances.

Effective January 1, 1996, all Oregon 4-H members participating in any equestrian activity, regardless of riding seat, will wear a properly fitted equestrian helmet which meets the standards imposed by the American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM) F1163 and includes certification and labeling required by the Safety Equipment Institute (SEI). Such headgear will be secured with the harness engaged and properly fastened when mounted on an equine or in a vehicle (cart, wagon, buggy, etc.) being pulled by one or more equine.

All members must ride with boots, bridles (no halters) and saddles as per 4-H Horse Contest Guide. No riding doubles. No wet mares or stallions may be shown in 4-H classes. No riding of horses inside the horse and livestock exhibit area. Only horses being shown by 4-H exhibitors may be stalled on the grounds. Any exceptions **must** be approved by 4-H Program Coordinator.

**Procedures and details are listed in "4-H Horse Contest Guide. **

** Judging is listed above in All Member Contests

Horse Showmanship Guidelines

All animals must be fitted before contest.

Basis for Scoring

Club Member	25%
Horse and Equipment	25%
Ability to show animal to good advantage and to pose,	
lead and handle animal as directed by judge	50%
Total	100%

Novice - 1st year rider in 4-H - any age. All novice classes of 2 entries or less will be combined.

Junior - For members 9 - 11 years old

Intermediate - For members 12 - 14 years old

Senior - For members 15 - 19 years old

**A Walk Trot class for riders who are inexperienced at loping or who are riding a horse that cannot lope because of age/skill level (green) or because of injury. Walk Trot classes must be approved by club leader and county 4-H staff (signed letters sent to Union County Extension Office). There will be no cross entry into any classes where canter/lope is used. **

4-H Horse Showmanship Classes

751 500 000 Horse Showmanship, Junior Novice 751 500 001 Horse Showmanship, Junior 751 500 004 Horse Showmanship, Int/Sr Novice 751 500 002 Horse Showmanship, Intermediate 751 500 003 Horse Showmanship, Senior

4-H Equitation Contest

Basis of Scoring

Member & Appointments	15%
Seat and Hands	35%
Performance	50%
Total	100%

751 100 120 English Equitation, Junior Novice 751 100 121 English Equitation, Junior 751 100 124 English Equitation, Int/Sr Novice 751 100 122 English Equitation, Intermediate 751 100 123 English Equitation, Senior 751 100 125 English Equitation, Walk Trot

751 100 130 Western Equitation, Junior Novice 751 100 131 Western Equitation, Junior 751 100 134 Western Equitation, Int/Sr Novice 751 100 132 Western Equitation, Intermediate 751 100 133 Western Equitation, Senior 751 100 125 Western Equitation, Walk Trot

Pleasure Classes

```
751 714 300 Western Pleasure, Junior Novice
```

751 714 301 Western Pleasure, Junior

751 714 304 Western Pleasure, Int/Sr Novice

751 714 302 Western Pleasure, Intermediate

751 714 303 Western Pleasure, Senior

751 715 330 English Pleasure, Junior Novice

751 715 331 English Pleasure, Junior

751 715 334 English Pleasure, Int/Sr Novice

751 715 332 English Pleasure, Intermediate

751 715 333 English Pleasure, Senior

Gaming Classes

751 800 011 Junior Figure 8

751 800 012 Intermediate Figure 8

751 800 013 Senior Figure 8

751 800 041 Junior Pole Bending

751 800 042 Intermediate Pole Bending

751 800 043 Senior Pole Bending

751 800 021 Junior Barrels

751 800 022 Intermediate Barrels

751 800 023 Senior Barrels

Horse check-out procedure

Each exhibitor will be required to have their stall areas inspected by the stall manager prior to leaving the grounds.

Requirements of this inspection include:

- 1. All bedding removed and disposed of in designated area, unless specifically told otherwise.
- 2. All decorations removed.
- 3. Stall dividers that have been removed should be replaced.
- 4. Alley way free of debris.

Livestock

** Judging is listed above in All Member Contests

Showmanship Guidelines

Showmanship in at least one class is required unless pre-excused by Department Superintendent and 4-H Program Coordinator. All animals should be fitted before contest.

Basis of Awards for Showmanship

1.	Preparation for showing	30%
----	-------------------------	-----

- a. Condition of feet and horns
- b. Cleanliness and grooming
- 2. Showing the Animal

50%

- a. Appearance of exhibitor
- b Control of animal by exhibitor
- c. Poise and coolness of exhibitor
- d. Skill in showing, including:
 - 1. Continuous attention to judge
 - 2. Keeping animal placed to advantage
 - 3. Ability to move animal as requested

3.	Fleshing and condition of animals	20%	
Total		1009	%

- ~Novice first year showman~
- ~ Cloverbuds members 5-8 years old~
- ~Junior members 9 11 years old~
- ~Intermediate members 12 14 years old~
- ~Senior members 15 19 years old

(Age as of Sept 1 of previous year, 19-year-olds must still be in high school)

Market Classes

All breeds compete together in classes judged according to animal weights. No underweight animals will be accepted.

721 300 000 Market Steer

Should not be more than 20 months old. May be purebred, crossbred, or grade. Minimum weight across the scale <u>1000</u> to <u>1700</u> lbs across the scale. Market steers must be dehorned and healed. A maximum of 2-inch scurs will be allowed. *NOTE: Change of ownership slips (E-Slips)* <u>must be accompany market steers.</u>

771 300 000 Market Lambs

Ewe or Wether (no yearling teeth). Weight limit **100** to **170** lbs across the scale.

781 300 000 Market Hogs

Barrows or Gilts, <u>230</u> to <u>310</u> lbs across the scale. Hogs will be judged according to market demands. No pregnant gilts.

795 300 000 Market Goats

Wether or Doe, <u>75</u> to <u>130</u> lbs across the scale. <u>We recommend that market goats are</u> <u>dehorned</u> if not; horns must be tipped or capped and must have kid's teeth. (see auction rules for possible penalty)

**It is the responsibility of the exhibitor to read the auction rules pertaining to your species.

Home Grown Market classes

Homegrown Market Class (Beef, Sheep, Swine, Goats)

The learning objective of the homegrown class is for youth to have the opportunity to experience the market animal project from birth through marketing of the animal. Exhibitors should gain and be able to demonstrate skills in animal husbandry, critical thinking, decision making, and record keeping through their animal project.

Rules for exhibiting your project in the homegrown class at Eastern Oregon Livestock Show:

1. Youth must be in possession of the mother of the animal being exhibited at the time of birth of the project animal.

Youth must contact 4-H/FFA leader/advisor and leader/advisor must validate animal's birth, possession of animal and mother. All

- 1. verification forms should be uploaded in exhibitors class entry in ShoWorks by species possession date.
- 2. The project animal and mother must be housed on parents or grandparents' property throughout the duration of the entire project cycle.
- 3. Project animal being exhibited will be entered as an individual in a market class.
- 4. Only one market animal entry per exhibitor.
- 5. Youth is to provide the majority of management and labor for project animal.

Animals must be pre-registered in this class, verification form turned in by possession date and declared at weigh in.

721 000 000 Market Steer 771 000 000 Market Hog 781 000 000 Market Lamb 795 000 000 Market Goat

Beef Cattle

Note: Fill in blank in class number (___) with one of the following numbers:

Age of animal at time of show.

- 01 Junior Bull or Steer Calf, born Jan 1 June 30 of current year
- 02 Junior Heifer Calf, born Jan 1 June 30 of current year
- O3 Senior Heifer Calf, born Sept 1 to Dec 31 of previous year
- O4 Summer Yearling Heifer, born May 1 to Aug 31 of previous yr
- 05 Junior Yearling Heifer, born Jan 1 to Apr 30 of previous year
- O6 Senior Yearling Heifer, born Sept 1 to Dec 31 two years ago
- 07 Junior Cow, 2 years old
- O8 Senior Cow, 3 years & older (must have calved in the last 12 months)

721 101 ()0	Angus, Red (01)
721 102 ()0	Angus, Black (02)
721 103 ()0	Charolais (03)
721 104 ()0	Hereford (04)
721 105 ()0	Limousin (05)
721 106 ()0	Pinzgauer (06)
721 107 ()0	Shorthorn (07)
721 108 ()0	Simmental (08)
721 109 ()0	Crossbred (9)
721 110 ()0	Other Breeds (10)

Note: Fill in blank (__) with the number in parenthesis following the breed (01-10).

- 721 1() 210 Producing Cow (2 yr old) with 4-H Production Records.
- 721 1() 220 Dam and Produce, cow and one offspring owned by same 4-H member.
- 721 1(__) 230 4-H Member's Beef Herd, three breeding animals owned by the same 4-H member.

Sheep

Ewes may be purebred, grade or crossbred, but must conform to breed type.

Note: Fill in the blank in class number (___) with one of the following numbers:

Age of animal at the time of show.

- Ram Lambs, under 1 year old (crossbred not eligible) 00
- 01 Spring Ewe Lamb, born Jan 1 to May 31 of current year
- 02 Fall Ewe Lamb, born Sept 1 to Dec 31 of previous year (Must have lambs' teeth)
- 03 Yearling Ewe, born Sept 1, 2 years ago to Dec 31 of previous yr
- 04 Producing Ewe, 2 yrs old, must have raised a lamb in current yr
- irrent yr

05	Aged Ewe, 3	yrs & older, must have raised a lamb in cui
771	101 ()0	Border Cheviot (01)
771	102 ()0	North Country Cheviot (02)
771	103 ()0	Columbia (03)
771	104 ()0	Corriedale (04)
771	105 ()0	Dorset (05)
771	106 ()0	Hampshire (06)
771	107 ()0	Lincoln (07)
771	108 ()0	Montadale (08)
771	109 ()0	Oxford (09)
771	110 ()0	Romney, White (10)
771	111 ()0	Romney, Natural Colored (11)
771	112 ()0	Shropshire (12)
771	113 ()0	Southdown (13)
771	114 ()0	Suffolk (14)
771	115 ()0	Other Breeds (15)

- 771 116 (___)0 Crossbred Meat Breeds - White Face (16)
- 771 117 (___)0 Crossbred Meat Breeds - Black Face (17)
- 771 118 ()0 Crossbred Wool Breeds (18)

Note: Fill in blank (__) with the number in parenthesis following the breed (01-10).

- 771 1() 210 Ewe with 4-H Production Records
- 771 1() 220 Ewe and One Produce, Ewe and one produce both shown in individual classes above, owned by the same 4-H member.
- 771 1(__) 230 4-H Member's Flock, three female animals from classes above owned by the same 4-H member.

Dairy Cattle

Note: Fill in blank in class number (_) with one of the following numbers:

Age of animal at time of show.

- 00 Junior Bull Calf, under 6 months
- 01 Junior Heifer Calf, March 1 to May 30 of current year
- 02 Inter Heifer Calf, Dec 1 of previous year to Feb 29 of current yr
- O3 Senior Heifer Calf, Sept 1 to Nov 30 of previous year
- 04 Junior Yearling Heifer, March 1 to Aug 31 of previous year
- O5 Sr Yearling Heifer, Sept 1, 2 yrs before to Feb 29 of previous yr
- 06 Jr cow, 2 yr old & Sr Yrlg in milk, born Mar 1-Aug 31, 2 yrs ago
- 07 Senior Cow, 2-3 years old
- 08 Three- & Four-year-old cow
- 09 Five-year-old Cow & over

741 101 ()0	Ayrshire (01)
-------------	---------------

- 741 102 (___)0 Brown Swiss (02)
- 741 103 (___)0 Guernsey (03)
- 741 104 (___)0 Holstein (04)
- 741 105 (___)0 Jersey (05)
- 741 106 ()0 Milking Shorthorn (06)
- 741 107 (__)0 Crossbred (07)
- 741 108 ()0 Other Pure Breeds (08)

Note: Fill in the blank () with the number in parenthesis following the breed's name (1-8)

741 10() 210 Producing Cow With 4-11 Production Reco	741 10(_) 210	Producing Cow with 4-H Production Records
---	---------------	---

741 10(_) 220 Dam and Daughter, cow and one daughter owned by same 4-H member.

741 10(_) 230 4-H Member's Dairy Herd, three dairy animals owned by the same 4-H

member.

Dairy Goats

Purebred and grade animals are shown together. All dairy goats must be dehorned.

Note: Fill in blank in class number (__) with one of the following numbers:

Age of animal at time of show.

- 01 Junior Doe Kid, April 1 to June 30 of current year
- 02 Intermediate Doe Kid, March 1 to March 31 of current year
- O3 Senior Doe Kid, January 1 to February 28 of current year
- 04 Dry Yearling Doe born last year
- 05 Milking Yearling Doe, born last year
- 06 Mature Doe, 2 year old
- 07 Mature Doe, 3 years and under 5 years
- 08 Mature Doe, 5 years and under 7 years
- 09 Aged Doe, 7 years and older

791 101 ()0	Alpine (01)
-------------	-------------

- 791 102 (___)0 La Mancha (02)
- 791 103 (___)0 Nigerian Dwarf (03)
- 791 104 (___)0 Nubian (04)
- 791 105 ()0 Oberhasli (05)
- 791 106 (___)0 Saanen (06)
- 791 107 (___)0 Sable (07)
- 791 108 (___)0 Toggenburg (08)
- 791 109 (___)0 Other pure breeds (09)
- 791 110 (___)0 Crossbred (10)

Note: Fill in blank (__) with the number in parenthesis following the above breed names (1-10).

- 791 1(_) 210 Mature Doe with 4-H Production Records.
- 791 1(__) 220 Dam and Daughter, doe and one offspring owned by same 4-H member.
- 791 1(__) 230 4-H Member's Dairy Goat Herd, three female dairy goats owned by the same 4-H member.

Meat Goats

Purebred and grade animals are shown together. We strongly recommend all goats be dehorned, tipped or capped. However, does whose horns are part of the breed standard may be shown with horns.

Note: Fill in the blank (___) with the number in parenthesis following numbers.

- Junior Doe: 0-3 months oldJunior Doe: 3-6 months old
- 03 Junior Doe: 6-9 months old
- 04 Junior Doe: 9-12 months old
- 05 Yearling Doe: 12-16 months old
- 06 Yearling Doe: 16-20 months old
- 07 Yearling Doe: 20-24 months old
- 08 Senior Doe: 24-36 months old
- 09 Senior Doe: older than 36 months

795 100 (__)0 Meat Goats (does)

795 100 210 Mature doe with 4-H Production records.

795 100 220 Dam and Daughter, doe and one offspring owned by the same 4-H member

795 100 230 Member's Meat Goat Herd, three female meat goats owned by the same 4-H member.

Special Awards

Market

Buckles will be awarded to Grand Champion market animals. The buckles are sponsored by:

Beef Hibberds Hornless Herefords

Goat Frisch Farms

Sheep Patterson Livestock
Swine Devin Cornford Family

Cheryl Graham Memorial Home-Grown Market Animal

This contest was started in memory of Cheryl Graham. Cheryl was involved in 4-H most of her life. She spent many hours working with youth in the Union Pitchforks 4-H Club which she and her husband Earl led since their marriage in 1964. She was also very involved with the Eastern Oregon Livestock Show and volunteered her time there for many years. The Grand Champion animal in all species will receive a buckle sponsored by:

Beef Jeff & Carole Smith
Goat Foggy Mt Boer Goats
Sheep The Graham Family
Swine Brendan & Karie Kelley

Horse

Janice & Michael Denning Pursuit of Excellence Horsemanship Award Union County Intermediate 4-H Horse member

This award will be given to the top intermediate horse exhibitor based on their total scores from the Eastern Oregon Livestock Show and Union County Fair. The award will be a personal plaque and revolving trophy for the successful winner to be given at the Annual 4-H Recognition Banquet.

The basis for selecting the award winner will be:

- · Currently enrolled in the Union County 4-H Horse Project.
- · Must be in the intermediate class
- Total scores from Western Equitation and Showmanship.
- Placing of Western Pleasure.

Beef

Fastest Gaining Steer Contest (rate of gain)

Sunnybrook Ranch will sponsor the award for the fastest gaining 4-H or FFA steer that officially entered in EOLS.

Oregon Trail Livestock Supply

Oregon Trail is awarding jackets to market steer, lamb, hog, goat champion and reserve champion winners. To be eligible for this award you must pre-register at the store and purchase \$100 of feed, supplies or supplements before EOLS.

Pioneer West, Inc

Pioneer West is awarding jackets to market steer, lamb, hog, goat champion and reserve champion winners. To be eligible for this award you must pre-register at the store and purchase feed before EOLS.

Point System

The Danish System will be used for the following classes:

All Showmanship

All Breeding

1st Place - 12 2nd Place - 10 3rd Place - 8

The American System will be used for the Judging Contests, Horse & Livestock.

Placing<u>1</u> <u>2</u> <u>3</u> <u>4</u> <u>5</u> Points 10 8 6 4 2

Ribbon percentages:

Blue 100-85% Red 84-70% White 69 & below

4-H and FFA Auction Rules

EXHIBITORS

- 1. All 4-H and FFA members currently enrolled in an Oregon 4-H or Agriculture livestock project are eligible to enter the EOLS Junior Auction classes.
- 2. Potential exhibitors must pre-register for the EOLS by published entry deadline.
- 3. Exhibitors are allowed to sell **one** market animal.
- 4. Exhibitors are required to show in at least one showmanship class. This animal may be a market or breeding animal which is entered in the show.
- 5. Any animal shown in either a 4-H or FFA market class and deemed eligible for sale at the Eastern Oregon Livestock Show Auction, MAY NOT be shown in any future market classes in any show. EOLS is a **Terminal Show**. Any animal purchased through the sale is NOT eligible to be shown in any market classes again or breeding classes until the following year.
- 6. All market animals must meet the guidelines within the 4-H and FFA Premium Books as well as the rules stated within these auction rules to be eligible to sell.
- 7. All Exhibitors are <u>required</u> to complete & submit at weigh in:
 - a. <u>COOL Form</u> USDA Country of Origin Affidavit *prior* to or at weigh-in, verifying the animal was bred and born in the USA.
 - b. <u>Market Health Record</u> form stating dates and names of all vaccinations animal has received. (available on the Union County 4-H Extension Website https://extension.oregonstate.edu/4h/union/eastern-oregon-livestock-show).
 - c. <u>E-slips</u> (for ALL market steers, including homegrown) Brand Inspection certificate showing change of ownership.
 - (Note: Exhibitors should also have received a COOL form completed by the original breeder verifying the animal origin this should be kept in the exhibitor's record book.)
- 8. Only animals exhibited in the regular market classes at this show may be sold through the Auction. Each exhibitor must personally show their market animal in the appropriate market class.
- 9. Exhibitors must personally sell their own animal in the auction ring.
- 10. All members showing market animals in the EOLS Junior Auction are strongly encouraged to promote the Auction and the purchase of animals. While promoting, members should invite potential buyers to the auction and <u>avoid</u> specifically asking buyers to purchase their animal. Members can write an invitation letter that includes a picture share a brief personal story.

REGISTRATION AND CHECK-IN

- 1. Market animals must be weighed between 1:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday of the show. Animals should weigh upon arrival at the stock show grounds.
- 2. In case of extenuating circumstances, owners of any animals that need to arrive before 1:00 p.m. <u>MUST have written permission</u> from the Union FFA Advisor for FFA animals or the Union County 4-H Staff for 4-H animals acknowledging the reason for early arrival. These animals shall be stalled and must be weigh as soon as the scales open at 1:00 p.m.
- 3. If there is an emergency regarding late arrival for market animal weigh in, individuals must call the EOLS 4-H Office at 541-562-6237 to obtain approval for late arrival.

WEIGHT REQUIREMENTS

- 1. <u>Official Sale Weight</u> The official sale weight shall be weight upon arrival less a 2% shrink. Only one weight will be permitted. Any re-weigh requested must happen immediately. Animals will exit the scale; scale will be zeroed, and animal will be reweighed.
- 2. Exhibitors may bring two animals (same species) to weigh in. The first animal to make weight across the scales will be considered the animal entered in the EOLS market class. Second animal must leave the grounds unless it can be entered in a breeding class. All animals must be clean and dry before crossing the scale. Hogs must have excess mud removed .
- 3. Weigh in conditions are identical between 4-H and FFA. 4-H animals will weigh on the 4-H scale; FFA animals will be weighed on the FFA scales. That weight will stand. Prior to the show, scales are checked and certified by State Weight and Measures Division.
- 5. Weight Requirements Market animals will be weighed on the official scales and must meet the minimum/maximum weight requirements for their species to be allowed to sell in the auction. The official sale weight shall be weight upon arrival less a 2% shrink of the first official weight off the scale. If a re-weigh is requested the animal will step off the scale, the scale will be rebalanced, the animal will immediately re-weigh and that weight will stand.
- 6. Market animals not making the minimum weight or going over the maximum weight will NOT be eligible to sell through the auction but are allowed to be shown in a feeder or overweight class and showmanship class to allow exhibitors to still compete at the show. Exhibitors of under/overweight animals may add their animal to a potential buyer list in the 4-H office in case there are after auction buyers available. No sale flyers are allowed to be posted. The auction is not responsible for the sale of these animals or for their care.

	Min Weight	Max Weight
Hogs	230	310
Goats	75	130
Lambs	100	170
Steers	1,000	1700

2025 steer minimum weight 1050

SALE ORDER

- 1. <u>Individual animal order</u> Sale order of individual animals is determined by conformation and champion drive placings. Class placing determined by the judge will be based upon quality (grade) and market class placing. Within each species the first to sell will be the highest placing animal with the highest-grade classification (indicated by blue or red ribbons). Animals receiving a white ribbon for grade will not be allowed to sell. Within each grade classification, sale order will alternate between 4-H and FFA participants as appropriate.
- 2. <u>Overall Show Champion of Species</u> An overall species champion of both 4-H and FFA shows will be the first animal to sell in the specie sale order, followed by the Champion and Reserve Champion of the Divisions (per rotation as defined in the program order below).
- 3. <u>Sale order of species</u> Sale order will be determined by auction committee and published in the official sale catalog.
- 4. **Program order** 4-H and FFA will alternate every year as to which program member will be the first to start the auction. FFA will go first on even years and 4-H will go first on odd years.
- 5. <u>Sale Order</u> The official sale order is posted one day prior to the EOLS Auction by the Auction Committee. It is the responsibility of the member to be aware of their place in the order and be in line and ready for their rotation into the auction. Any members missing their rotation will not be allowed to sell in the auction at a later time.

SALE REQUIREMENTS

All animals meeting the weight limitations will be evaluated by a qualified judge who will
estimate if beef grades select, choice, or prime; if sheep will grade choice or prime; if
hogs will grade US 1 or 2 or if goats will grade choice or prime. The Judges decisions
are final.

- 2. All market lambs and goats grading choice or better must be sold through the Auction. Steers grading prime, choice or select must sell in the Auction. Market hogs grading 1 or 2 must sell in the Auction. Lambs and goats grading below choice; standard steers and utility hogs will receive a white ribbon and will not be allowed to sell through the auction.
- 3. Transfer of ownership takes place at the time of the sale. Once auction animals leave the grounds all responsibility for animal transfers to the buyer.
 - All Exhibitors will care for their market animals through 6:00 p.m. Saturday night. If your animal is a "Pickup or Take-Home Animal", please water your animal once that species has completed selling. All pickup/take home animals must be checked out with the Auction Office before loading. The Auction Committee will assist in loading out of the animals. All animals should be off the grounds before 7:00 pm of sale day.
- 4. <u>Resale Animals Condemned at Commercial Slaughter</u> If an animal is rejected, condemned, or discounted in the commercial slaughter process for any reason, the final buyer could have the option of accepting the floor price of the animal. *The exhibitor could assume this loss at the discretion of the auction committee.*
- 5. There will be no decorating of sale animals.
- 6. <u>Market Steer Requirements</u> Change of Ownership Slips (E-slips not transportation certificates) must accompany all market steers and must be presented to the weigh master at weigh in time. Steers will not be allowed across the scales without the appropriate transfer slip in hand, there will be no exceptions. (*These forms should be completed at time of purchase and signed by original seller.*) Market steers must be dehorned and healed. A maximum of 2-inch scurs are allowed. Measured at the base of the scur.

All resale steers (both 4-H and FFA) will be sold on carcass and yield grade. Any discount taken or premium paid by the re-sale packers will be passed on to the exhibitors. This means that the exhibitor will be paid on carcass quality plus the premium the buyer bids above market price. Market steers going for re-sale may be charged a feed lot fee for approximately one week if arrangements are made in hopes to prevent "dark cutters." Exhibitors that sell steers to buyers of locker meat will be paid total price bid on animals using the live grade. All market steers sold as custom kill at the auction must be left tied with a rope halter at least 3/8-inch in diameter in the areas designated for the Custom Kill Processors. All Exhibitors will care for their market animals through 6:00 p.m. Saturday night. All re-sale steers will be turned loose in the location stated by the Auction Committee.

7. <u>Market Goat Requirements</u> – It is recommended that market goats be dehorned but not required if horns are the breed standard. If animals show any sign of being unsafe because of their horns, exhibitors may be asked to cap or tip horns or remove the animal from the grounds.

ANIMAL HEALTH POLICY

- 1. The Eastern Oregon Livestock Show Junior Auction is committed to the production of safe, wholesome food products and the safety of all exhibitors and visitors.
- 2. The EOLS Animal Health Inspection Committee reserves the right to require a health inspection, diagnostic tests, treatment and/or disease control measures or procedures, which become necessary in emergencies at the exhibitor's expense.
- 3. All male market animals must be castrated and completely healed with no visible signs of scrotum. No **cryptorchid** will be allowed to show/sell in market classes. All animals will be checked as they cross the scale. Animals that make it across the scale may still be disqualified by the judge.
- 4. An unmanageable animal may be disqualified from the show and auction at any time it is deemed necessary.
- 5. Disqualification of an animal is not directed towards an Exhibitor. It is for the safety of all exhibitors and visitors as well as to produce safe, wholesome food products.
- 6. ALL ANIMALS shall be subject to inspection by the initial EOLS Animal Health Inspection Committee upon admission to the grounds or by members of the Animal Health Committee as deemed necessary throughout the show. No animal shall be admitted to the show or allowed to remain on the grounds that shows evidence of abuse, infection, contagious disease, any unsightly disease or condition, (i.e.: warts, ringworm/club lamb fungus, pink eye, strangles, contagious ecthyma (sore mouth), scabies, lice, mites, ticks, fleas, hernias, prolapse, etc) or is unmanageable.
 - The Animal Health Committee will be made up of one representative from 4-H, FFA and the Auction Committee.
- 7. It will be the initial EOLS Animal Health Inspection Committee's decision to isolate the animal for disqualification from the show if there is any question about the health of the animal. Animals NOT passing health inspection by the Animal Health Committee must be IMMEDIATELY removed from the grounds.
- 8. Due to recent trade agreement restrictions between the United States and China the domestic packers who purchase the market swine at the Eastern Oregon Livestock Show Junior Auction WILL NOT accept any hogs who have been fed the feed additive Ractopamine.
- 9. Any market swine who are fed Ractopamine with NOT be eligible to sell in the EOLS Auction. Exhibitors will be required to sign a feed restriction affidavit upon registering for the show. If an exhibitor violates this rule and the packer rejects the carcass, the exhibitor will forfeit their check. Forms are available on the Union County 4-H Extension Website https://extension.oregonstate.edu/4h/union/eastern-oregon-livestock-show

APPEAL PROCESS

- 1. Any person who wishes to file a complaint or grievance must do so in writing, using the EOLS "Appeal Form", to the EOLS Appeals Committee immediately. The decision of the committee shall be final. A \$50 cash (nonrefundable fee) must accompany the written complaint or grievance. Exhibitors who submit a written complaint will have their animals placed in a separate pen until the EOLS Executive Board reviews the complaint with the Appeals Committee.
- 2. If the complaint or grievance is deemed worthy of further consideration by the committee, any additional expenses (veterinary, legal or other) to be incurred in the resolution of the complaint must be paid in advance by the person filing the complaint or grievance.
- 3. If the complaint or grievance is upheld by the committee and additional costs were incurred, then the owner of the animal in question bears the burden of additional costs and the committee refunds the additional costs (not including the non-refundable \$50 fee) to the person submitting the complaint.
- 4. In the case of the committee upholding the complaint, the animal will be immediately removed from the grounds and the owner will lose the privilege of exhibiting at EOLS. To be reinstated to the show in the future, the exhibitor of the animal in question must appeal to the EOLS Board in writing, no later than the March meeting of the following year.

PAYMENT

- 1. <u>Sales Commission</u> All Exhibitors will be charged a four (4%) commission. Commission is used to assist with auction expenses and support repairs and maintenance of facilities.
- 2. All Exhibitors selling market animals will be paid within 90 days of the close of the Auction. Steers will be paid as stated in the rules above; hogs and lambs will be paid based on Sale Weight.
- 3. For those 4-H and FFA members that have financed their market animals through a lending institution, market animal checks will be jointly issued when EOLS Auction Committee has been so advised.
- 4. Market checks may be reissued if lost. The current cost of the stop payment fee will be deducted from the new check.

COMMITTEES

1. <u>Initial EOLS Animal Health Inspection Committee</u> - The initial EOLS Animal Health Committee shall include two (2) to three (3) unassociated market animal producer(s) (i.e. a lamb, hog or beef producer without immediate family showing in that species) and a Program Director (4-H or FFA) and will be available only on Wednesday, weigh-in day. If the initial Animal Health Committee is not immediately available, the animal in question will be placed in a separate pen by the Superintendent until the Committee is available.

- 2. <u>EOLS Animal Health Inspection Committee</u> The balance of the Committee shall consist of the EOLS Auction Chairman, Auction Barn Superintendent, EOLS Executive Board and one Program Director from both 4-H and FFA and a Licensed Veterinarian. The Veterinarian will be available only on an on-call basis. The Producer(s) and the Licensed Veterinarian shall be procured by the EOLS Auction Committee prior to the show. The EOLS Animal Health Inspection Committee may be called together for other issues after weigh-in day as needed.
- 3. <u>EOLS Appeals Committee</u> The Appeals committee will consist of four people: the appropriate 4-H or FFA staff member, two EOLS Auction Committee members and one EOLS Executive Board member.

4 EOLS Auction Committee

Chairs: Scott Loree, Trista Loree

Committee: 4-H - Kimi Starner, Karie Kelley and FFA - Karie Kelley, JD Cant, Brendan

Kelley, and EOLS Board - Elaine LaRochelle, Dennis Murchison and Jake Seavert.

EOLS Board Executive Representative: Darren Hansen

THANK YOUS

- 1. Please send a thank you note to the buyer(s) and anyone who may add-on or bump up the price of your market animal. Addresses will be available at the auction office on sale day, or after the sale from the Extension office, 541-963-1010, and in your sale proceeds check. Please check your list of buyers when you receive your check to see if you had additional buyers and get addresses to send thank you card from the website https://www.easternoregonlivestockshow.com/4h-ffa-auction.html. Gifts may be taken to buyers after the Auction is over or to their place of business with a thank you card. No thank you gifts will be allowed in the auction barn.
- 2. Buyer "thank you placards" will be mailed directly to buyers by the auction committee.

Health Requirements

- All animals must come from a modified certified brucellosis-free area.
- Animals must also come from a tuberculosis-free accredited herd.
- No animal from a guarantined herd will be permitted to enter the show.
- All animals should be current on vaccinations.
- An animal must be healthy at show and sale times.
- Animals who are sick or showing signs of illness will be removed at a veterinarian's discretion. This includes prolapsing animals.